
Meeting Packet

Regular Meeting - Board of Education

Thursday, January 19, 2017

05:30 PM

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Packet page 1 of 75



NORTH LITTLE ROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT
OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

AGENDA

Regular Meeting - Board of EducationRegular Meeting - Board of Education
Administration Building

2700 Poplar Street
North Little Rock, Arkansas 72115

Thursday, January 19, 2017 05:30 PM

PUBLIC COMMENTS

II. . CALL TO ORDERCALL TO ORDER

Darrell Montgomery, President

IIII. . INVOCATIONINVOCATION
Presenter:Presenter: Arianna McClina, Third Grader Meadow Park Elementary School, daughter of Derek and Bian...

IIIIII. . FLAG SALUTEFLAG SALUTE
Presenter:Presenter: Kai Newburn, PreK Pike View Early Childhood Center, daughter of Kerry and Heather Newb...

IVIV. . MISSION STATEMENT AND VISION STATEMENTMISSION STATEMENT AND VISION STATEMENT

Mission Statement:
The North Little Rock School District and the Community will provide for achievement, accountability, acceptance and the
necessary assets in the pursuit of each student’s educational success.

Vision Statement:
World Class Schools for World Class Students

VV. . ROLL CALL OF MEMBERSROLL CALL OF MEMBERS

Sandi Campbell
Luke King
Darrell Montgomery
Taniesha Richardson-Wiley
Tracy Steele
Scott Teague
Dorothy Williams

VIVI. . RECOGNITION OF PEOPLE/EVENT/PROGRAMSRECOGNITION OF PEOPLE/EVENT/PROGRAMS
11. . Superintendent's Honor RollSuperintendent's Honor Roll

Presenter:Presenter: Charles Jones, NLR Academy Principal

aa. . Herman Johnson - Campus Supervisor, NLR AcademyHerman Johnson - Campus Supervisor, NLR Academy

22. . Crestwood Elementary SchoolCrestwood Elementary School

Packet page 2 of 75



Presenter:Presenter: Dr. Beth Stewart, Deputy Superintendent

33. . Meadow Park Elementary School and Pike View Early Childhood CenterMeadow Park Elementary School and Pike View Early Childhood Center
Presenter:Presenter: April McKinley, Principal and Jody Veit Edrington, Coordinator Pike View Early Childhoo...

44. . National School Board Month - Board Member RecognitionNational School Board Month - Board Member Recognition
Presenter:Presenter: Mr. Rodgers, Superintendent

VIIVII. . DISPOSITION OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETINGSDISPOSITION OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETINGS
11. . Regular Board Meeting - Thursday, December 15, 2016Regular Board Meeting - Thursday, December 15, 2016

Regular Board Meeting Minutes - December 15 2016.pdf (p. 5)

22. . Special Board Meeting - Thursday, January 5, 2017Special Board Meeting - Thursday, January 5, 2017
Special Board Meeting Meeting Minutes - January 5 2017.pdf (p. 10)

VIIIVIII. . ACTION ITEMS - NEW BUSINESSACTION ITEMS - NEW BUSINESS
11. . Consent AgendaConsent Agenda

Presenter:Presenter: Kelly Rodgers, Superintendent

aa. . Monthly Financial ReportsMonthly Financial Reports

Financial Statements - January 2017.pdf (p. 12)

bb. . Employment of PersonnelEmployment of Personnel

Employment of Personnel - Jan 2017.pdf (p. 30)

cc. . Business Office ItemsBusiness Office Items

Business Office Items - January 2017 Revised.docx (p. 33)

dd. . Building Use RequestBuilding Use Request

Facilities Use Agreement Little Rock Wind Symphony - Jan 2017.pdf (p. 36)

Facilities Use Agreement Karen's Dance Recital - Jan 2017.pdf (p. 39)

22. . NLRHS Dedication Ceremony ReportNLRHS Dedication Ceremony Report

33. . Classified personnel Policies Committee ReportClassified personnel Policies Committee Report
Fringe Benefits Savings Option - Jan 10 2017.pdf (p. 42)

CPPC Meeting - Jan 10 2017.docx (p. 45)

CPPC Meeting - Jan 4 2017.docx (p. 47)

44. . Licensed Personnel Policies Committee ReportLicensed Personnel Policies Committee Report

55. . North Little Rock Center of Excellence Tiered RecognitionNorth Little Rock Center of Excellence Tiered Recognition
Presenter:Presenter: Dr. Beth Stewart, Deputy Superintendent and Christie Toland, Director of College and Ca...

North Little Rock Center of Excellence Tiered Recognition Program - January 2017.pdf (p. 48)

6.3 Public Gifts and Donations to the Schools 6.6 Fundraising and 7.8.1 Donated Property - January 2017.pdf (p.
51)

66. . Techstart Agreement MOUTechstart Agreement MOU
Presenter:Presenter: Dr. Beth Stewart, Deputy Superintendent

MOU Techstart - Jan 2017.pdf (p. 54)

Packet page 3 of 75

https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613698
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613720
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613587
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613000
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613589
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613005
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613002
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613476
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613475
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613474
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613377
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613588
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613611


77. . NLR Middle School Roof ProposalNLR Middle School Roof Proposal
Presenter:Presenter: Gene Hawk, Director of Facilities Management

MS Seamless Systems Roof Proposal.pdf (p. 59)

NLRSD Middle Roof Proposal - Revised -.pdf (p. 63)

88. . Disposal of Outdated Nonworking Technology EquipmentDisposal of Outdated Nonworking Technology Equipment
Presenter:Presenter: Brian Brown, Director of Purchasing and Finance

Disposal of Outdated Nonworking Technology Equipment-Jan 2017.pdf (p. 65)

99. . NLR Academy Roof ProposalNLR Academy Roof Proposal
Presenter:Presenter: Gene Hawk, Director of Facilities Management

Academy School Re-roof Proposal - Revised.pdf (p. 68)

NLR Academy Seamless Systems Roof Proposal.pdf (p. 70)

1010. . Commissioning AssessmentCommissioning Assessment
Presenter:Presenter: Gene Hawk, Director of Facilities Management

Level I Energy Assessment proposal 011017-1.pdf (p. 71)

IXIX. . CALENDAR OF EVENTSCALENDAR OF EVENTS
11. . Board Workshop - Thursday, February 2, 2017, Central Office Board Room, 5:30 pmBoard Workshop - Thursday, February 2, 2017, Central Office Board Room, 5:30 pm

22. . Regular Board Meeting - Thursday, February 16, 2017, Central Office Board Room,Regular Board Meeting - Thursday, February 16, 2017, Central Office Board Room,
5:30 pm5:30 pm

XX. . INFORMATIONAL ITEMSINFORMATIONAL ITEMS
11. . Superintendent's Professional Growth PlanSuperintendent's Professional Growth Plan

XIXI. . SUPERINTENDENT'S CONTRACT RENEWALSUPERINTENDENT'S CONTRACT RENEWAL

XIIXII. . ADJOURNMENTADJOURNMENT

Packet page 4 of 75

https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613016
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613015
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613028
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613017
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613014
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/613018


NORTH LITTLE ROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT
OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

AGENDA

Regular Meeting - Board of EducationRegular Meeting - Board of Education
Meeting MinutesMeeting Minutes

Administration Building
2700 Poplar Street

North Little Rock, Arkansas 72115
Thursday, December 15, 2016 05:30 PM

PUBLIC COMMENTS

II. . CALL TO ORDERCALL TO ORDER

President Darrell Montgomery called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.

IIII. . ROLL CALL OF MEMBERSROLL CALL OF MEMBERS

Present
Sandi Campbell
Luke King
Darrell Montgomery
Taniehsa Richardson-Wiley
Tracy Steele
Scott Teague
Dorothy Williams

Absent
None

IIIIII. . DISPOSITION OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETINGSDISPOSITION OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETINGS

Motion:
Scott Teague moved to approve the regular Board meeting minutes on Thursday, November 17 as presented and printed on the
agenda. Dorothy Williams seconded the motion.

YEAS: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Teague, and Williams
NAYS: None

11. . Regular Board Meeting Minutes - Thursday, November 17Regular Board Meeting Minutes - Thursday, November 17

IVIV. . ACTION ITEMS - NEW BUSINESSACTION ITEMS - NEW BUSINESS

Motion:
Dorothy Williams moved to amend the consent agenda to include the following employment of personnel changes below. Scott
Teague seconded the motion.

Yeas: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele Teague, and Williams
Nays: None

Sandy Williams - From Assistant Principal, North Little Rock High Schoo, To Safe Schools Coordinator, NLRSD
Kwame Bradford - Maintenance- Custodian, Effective 12-13-2016, Salary Schedule 5CU, 252 Days

Packet page 5 of 75



Jonte Horton - Maintenance- Custodian, Effective 12-13-2016, Salary Schedule 5CU, 252 Days
Randy Phillips - Maintenance- Custodian, Effective 12-13-2016, Salary Schedule 5CU, 252 Days
Gerald Watson - Maintenance- Custodian, Effective 12-13-2016, Salary Schedule 5CU, 252 Days
Robert Johnson - Maintenance- Custodia, Effective 12-13-2016, Salary Schedule 5CU, 252 Days
Henry Jones - Maintenance- Custodian, Effective 12-13-2016, Salary Schedule 5CU, 252 Days
Troy Pettus - Maintenance- Custodian, Effective 12-13-2016, Salary Schedule 5CU, 252 Days
Mose Randall - Maintenance- Custodian, Effective 12-13-2016, Salary Schedule 5CU, 252 Days
Pamela White - Maintenance- Custodian, Effective 12-13-2016, Salary Schedule 5CU, 252 Days
Alahandro Harris - After School Instructor – Crestwood, Effective 01-04-2017
Jaynelle Dixon - NLRSD Transportation – Bus Driver, Effective 12-15-2016, Salary Schedule 5TR, 182 Days
Chandra Carter - NLRSD Transportation – Bus Driver, Effective 12-15-2016, Salary Schedule 5TR, 182 Days

11. . Consent AgendaConsent Agenda

Motion:
Dorothy Williams moved to accept the consent agenda as presented and printed on the agenda. Scott Teague seconded the
motion.

YEAS: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele, Teague, and Williams
NAYS: none

aa. . Monthly Financial ReportsMonthly Financial Reports

bb. . Employment of PersonnelEmployment of Personnel

cc. . Business Office ItemsBusiness Office Items

dd. . City of Guy Sale and Donation AgreementCity of Guy Sale and Donation Agreement

ee. . Building Use RequestBuilding Use Request

ff. . Payment of Regular BillsPayment of Regular Bills

22. . North Little Rock High School and Center of Excellence Course CatalogsNorth Little Rock High School and Center of Excellence Course Catalogs

Motion:
Luke King moved to accept the North Little Rock High School and North Little Rock Center of Excellence course catalogs as
presented and printed on the agenda. Scott Teague seconded the motion.

YEAS: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele, Teague, and Williams
NAYS: none

33. . Erate Consultant ContractErate Consultant Contract

Motion:
Dorothy Williams moved to accept the Erate Consultant contract as presented and printed on the agenda. Scott Teague
seconded the motion.

YEAS: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele, Teague, and Williams
NAYS: none

44. . NLRHS 427 Chromebooks, Title I Funds, TIPS/TAPS Contract #2062515NLRHS 427 Chromebooks, Title I Funds, TIPS/TAPS Contract #2062515

Motion:
Luke King moved to accept the recommendation for 427 NLRHS chromebooks from Title 1 funds, TIPS/TAPS contract
#2062515 as presented and printed on the agenda. Sandi Cambpell seconded the motion.

YEAS: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele, Teague, and Williams
NAYS: none

55. . LPPC Committee ReportLPPC Committee Report

Motion:
Dorothy Williams moved to accept policy CDG Longevity Retirement Pay and 3.8 A Licensed Personnel Sick Leave

Packet page 6 of 75



Redemption as presented. Luke King seconded the motion.

YEAS: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele, Teague, and Williams
NAYS: none

The policies were approved contingent upon ASBA approval

66. . North Little Rock Water Sewer EasementNorth Little Rock Water Sewer Easement

Motion:
Scott Teague moved to accept the recommendation for the North Little rock Water Sewer Easement as presented and printed
on the agenda. Dorothy Williams seconded the motion.

YEAS: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele, Teague, and Williams
NAYS: none

77. . CPPC Committee ReportCPPC Committee Report

No action.

88. . Articulation Agreement Between the NLRSD and Pulaski Technical CollegeArticulation Agreement Between the NLRSD and Pulaski Technical College

Motion:
Tracy Steele moved to accept the Articulation Agreement between NLRSD and Pulaski Technical College as presented and
printed on the agenda. Dorothy Williams seconded the motion.

YEAS: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele, Teague, and Williams
NAYS: none

99. . Consider Budgetary Reductions Due to Loss of Desegregation FundsConsider Budgetary Reductions Due to Loss of Desegregation Funds

Motion:
Scott Teague moved to accept administrations recommendation for budgetary reductions due to loss of desegregation
funds on the following:
a. Maximize class size and master schedule
b. Early buyout
c. Reduce district and campus administrative staff for the 2017-2018 school year
d. Correction in placement on salary schedule
e. Discontinue holiday pay
f. Payoff energy bonds
g. Outsourcing
h. Reduce cost of utilities
i. Discontinue IB program

Roll Call Vote:
Campbell - yes
King - yes
Mongtomery - yes
Richardson-Wiley - no
Steele - no
Teague - yes
Williams - yes
 
Motion:
Scott Teague moved to accept administrations recommendation for budgetary reductions due to loss of desegregation
funds on the following and send it to the classified and licensed committees for review:
j. Develop new licensed and classified salary and stipend schedules
k. Reduce benefits package
l. Reduce days for all 252 employees by 7 days
m. Discontinue longevity and unused sick leave pay after 2016-2017

Roll Call Vote:
Campbell - yes
King - yes
Mongtomery - yes

Packet page 7 of 75



Richardson-Wiley - no
Steele - no
Teague - yes
Williams - yes

aa. . Maximize Class Size and Master ScheduleMaximize Class Size and Master Schedule

bb. . Early BuyoutEarly Buyout

cc. . Reduce District and Campus Administrative Staff for the 2017-2018 School YearReduce District and Campus Administrative Staff for the 2017-2018 School Year

dd. . Correction in Placement on Salary ScaleCorrection in Placement on Salary Scale

ee. . Discontinue Holiday PayDiscontinue Holiday Pay

ff. . Payoff Energy BondsPayoff Energy Bonds

gg. . OutsourcingOutsourcing

hh. . Reduce Cost of UtlitiesReduce Cost of Utlities

ii. . Discontinue IB ProgramDiscontinue IB Program

jj. . Develop New Licensed & Classified Salary and Stipend SchedulesDevelop New Licensed & Classified Salary and Stipend Schedules

kk. . Reduce Benefits PackageReduce Benefits Package

ll. . Reduce Days for All 252 Employees by 7 DaysReduce Days for All 252 Employees by 7 Days

mm. . Discontinue Longevity & Unused Sick Leave Pay After 2016-17Discontinue Longevity & Unused Sick Leave Pay After 2016-17

1010. . Demo and Replacement of (3) Roof Top Package Unit at the NLR Middle SchoolDemo and Replacement of (3) Roof Top Package Unit at the NLR Middle School

Motion:
Luke King moved to accept the recommendation for the demo and replacement of (3) roof top package unit at the NLR
Middle School as presented and printed on the agenda. Sandi Campbell seconded the motion.

YEAS: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele, Teague, and Williams
NAYS: none

1111. . NLR Lease PayoffNLR Lease Payoff

Motion:
Luke King moved to accept the recommendation for the NLR lease payoff as presented and printed on the agenda. Scott
Teague seconded the motion.

YEAS: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele, Teague, and Williams
NAYS: none

VV. . SUPERINTENDENT'S EVALUATIONSUPERINTENDENT'S EVALUATION

No action.

VIVI. . EXPULSIONEXPULSION

Motion:
Luke King moved to accept the recommendation for expulsion of student # 1333 and loss of credit for the current and next
semester for violation of policy 4.24. Scott Teague seconded the motion.

YEAS: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele, Teague, and Williams
NAYS: none

VIIVII. . ADJOURNMENTADJOURNMENT

Motion:
Luke King moved to adjourn the meeting. Scott Teague seconded the motion.

Packet page 8 of 75



YEAS: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele, Teague, and Williams
NAYS: none

Board President Darrell Montgomery declared the meeting adjourned at 9:55 pm.

_______________________________               _______________________________
Darrell Montgomery, Board President                  Rhonda Colquitt, Recording Secretary

Packet page 9 of 75



NORTH LITTLE ROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT
OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

AGENDA

Special Board MeetingSpecial Board Meeting
Meeting MinutesMeeting Minutes

Administration Building
2700 Poplar Street

North Little Rock, AR 72115
Thursday, January 5, 2017 05:30 PM

II. . Call to OrderCall to Order

President Darrell Montgomery called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.

IIII. . Roll Call of MembersRoll Call of Members

Present
Sandi Campbell
Luke King
Taniesha Richardson-Wiley
Tracy Steele
Scott Teague
Dorothy Williams

Absent 
None

IIIIII. . New BusinessNew Business

aa. . North Little Rock Academy ChromebooksNorth Little Rock Academy Chromebooks

Motion:
Dorothy Williams moved to accept the proposal for North Little Rock Academy chromebooks as presented and printed on the
agenda. Sandi Campbell seconded the motion.

YEAS: Campbell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele, Teague and Williams
NAYS: None

bb. . Former Park Hill Elementary School Real Estate OfferFormer Park Hill Elementary School Real Estate Offer

Tabled. No action.

IVIV. . AdjournmentAdjournment

Dorothy Williams moved to adjourn the meeting. Sandi Campbell seconded the motion.

YEAS: Cambpell, King, Montgomery, Richardson-Wiley, Steele, Teague and Williams
NAYS: None

Board President Darrell Montgomery declared the meeting adjourned at 5:34 pm.

Packet page 10 of 75



______________________________              ______________________________
Darrell Montgomery, Board President                 Rhonda Colquitt, Recording Secretary

Packet page 11 of 75



Packet page 12 of 75



Packet page 13 of 75



Packet page 14 of 75



Packet page 15 of 75



Packet page 16 of 75



Packet page 17 of 75



Packet page 18 of 75



Packet page 19 of 75



Packet page 20 of 75



Packet page 21 of 75



Packet page 22 of 75



Packet page 23 of 75



Packet page 24 of 75



Packet page 25 of 75



Packet page 26 of 75



Packet page 27 of 75



Packet page 28 of 75



Packet page 29 of 75



Packet page 30 of 75



Packet page 31 of 75



Packet page 32 of 75



NORTH LITTLE ROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUSINESS OFFICE ITEMS FOR CONSENT AGENDA APPROVAL

January 19, 2017

ITEM: Dell Chromebooks (30), Anywhere Cart (1) & OS Management (30)
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Dell Chromebooks (30), Anywhere Cart (1) & OS 
Management (30)
COMPETITIVE BID: Yes
BID NAME:  Tips/Taps # 2062515
SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Title I
LOCATION:  Meadow Park Elementary

White River Services $8,867.92*****

ITEM: Dell Chromebooks (28), Anywhere Cart (1) & OS Management (1)
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Dell Chromebooks (28), Anywhere Cart (1) & OS 
Management (1)
COMPETITIVE BID: Yes
BID NAME:  Tips/Taps # 2062515
SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Title I
LOCATION:  Indian Hills Elementary

White River Services $8,354.05*****

ITEM: Dell Chromebooks (27) & OS Management (27)
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Dell Chromebooks (27) & OS Management (27)
COMPETITIVE BID: Yes
BID NAME:  Tips/Taps # 2062515
SOURCE OF FUNDING: Activity/PTA 
LOCATION:  Lakewood Elementary

White River Services $6,937.25*****

 ITEM: Supplemental Textbooks
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Supplemental Textbooks
COMPETITIVE BID: NA
BID NAME:  NA
SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Title I
LOCATION:  Youth Home

Educators Book Depository $57,930.97*****

*            Did not meet specifications
**           Part of all or no bid
***         Quality not recommended
****        Limited Coverage
*****       Recommended
******      Recommended Pending Contract Negotiation                    

Packet page 33 of 75



 ITEM: Stem Girls Conference 7-8 Grade (UALR)
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Stem Girls Conference 7-8 Grade (UALR)
COMPETITIVE BID: NA
BID NAME: NA
SOURCE OF FUNDING: Perkins 
LOCATION:  NLR Middle School

Arkansas Stem Coalition $10,000.00*****

 ITEM: Access Controls (Change Order)
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Access Controls (Change Order)
COMPETITIVE BID: Yes
BID NAME: Tips/Taps # 6042315
SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Construction
LOCATION: NLR High School

Genesis $21,390.92*****

 ITEM: Cabling (Change Order)
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Cabling (Change Order)
COMPETITIVE BID: Yes
BID NAME: Tips/Taps # 1082715
SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Construction
LOCATION: NLR High School

Genesis $3,129.59*****

ITEM: School Furniture
ITEM DESCRIPTION: School Furniture
COMPETITIVE BID: Yes
BID NAME:  Tips/Taps # 1102512
SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Construction
LOCATION:  High School

Virco $27,008.87*****

*            Did not meet specifications
**           Part of all or no bid
***         Quality not recommended
****        Limited Coverage
*****       Recommended
******      Recommended Pending Contract Negotiation                    

Packet page 34 of 75



ITEM: Varsity Cheer Team – Attend Nationals in Orlando, FL
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Varsity Cheer Team – Attend Nationals in Orlando, FL
COMPETITIVE BID: No
BID NAME:  N/A
SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Varsity Cheer Activity Account
LOCATION:  High School

Varsity Spirit Corporation $19,520.00*****

 

*            Did not meet specifications
**           Part of all or no bid
***         Quality not recommended
****        Limited Coverage
*****       Recommended
******      Recommended Pending Contract Negotiation                    

Packet page 35 of 75



Packet page 36 of 75



Packet page 37 of 75



Packet page 38 of 75



Packet page 39 of 75



Packet page 40 of 75



Packet page 41 of 75



Packet page 42 of 75



Packet page 43 of 75



Packet page 44 of 75



Classified Personnel Policy Committee 

Tuesday, January 10, 2017

The CPPC met at Central Office on Wednesday, January, 2017, at 
9:08 am.  Committee members present were: KarliSaracini, Brian 
Brown, Donald Williams, Albert Dobbins, Javis Dickerson, Carla 
Dobbins, Michael Stone, and Kris Phipps.

Location:  Conference Room Central Office
Time: 9:18 a.m.

Old Business:
 Policies
 Discussion of new numbers for insurance from EBI.  

Looking at options $35, $35 and $25.

New Business:
 None

1. Micheal Stone made motion to except minutes from last 
meeting with the error of Javis Dickerson present.  Javis 
Dickerson seconded motion.  Motion approved unanimously.

2. Kris Phipps made motion to except Option 1 and Micheal 
Stone seconded the motion.  Motion approved unanimously.

3. Kris Phipps made motion for Mrs. Saracini and her 
department to draft the policies to vote on for next meeting. 
Javis Dickerson seconded motion.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

4. Glenda Rowe has a question about longevity being in the 
budget.  Annually we pay about $750,000 in longevity and 
unused sick days.

5. Discussion on cuts.
6. Javis Dickerson made motion to adjourn.  Albert Dobbins 

seconded motion carried unanimously.

Packet page 45 of 75



Packet page 46 of 75



Classified Personnel Policy Committee 

Wednesday, January 4, 2017

The CPPC met at Central Office on Wednesday, January, 2017, at 
9:08 am.  Committee members present were: Karli Saracini, Brian 
Brown, Donald Williams, Albert Dobbins, Carla Dobbins, Michael 
Stone, and Kris Phipps.  Absent Javis Dickerson.

Location:  Conference Room Central Office
Time: 9:08 a.m.

New Business:
 District Budget Cuts-Benefits
 Policies- 8.1, 8.5, 8.6, 8.38, NLR-8, NLR-17, NLR-18, NLR-19, NLR-39

1. Discussion on Policies 
2. Discussion on Option 1 and Option 2 Reduce District Contribution
3. Michael Stone made motion for Option 1 and Brian Brown seconded motion passed 

everyone voted yes.  
4. Discussion on Policy for Sick Bank and Sick Leave making changes to bring back next 

meeting.  Match definitions with ASBA but leave our days.
5. Kris made motion to meet back next Tuesday to vote on changes for Sick Bank and Sick 

Leave Karli Seconded motion passed.  Everyone voted yes.
6. Kris made motion to table rest of policies until next meeting. Brian seconded.  Everyone 

voted yes.
7. Kris made motion to adjourn and Micheal seconded.  Everyone voted yes. 10:19 a.m.

Packet page 47 of 75



Packet page 48 of 75



Packet page 49 of 75



Packet page 50 of 75



Packet page 51 of 75



Packet page 52 of 75



Packet page 53 of 75



Packet page 54 of 75



Packet page 55 of 75



Packet page 56 of 75



Packet page 57 of 75



Packet page 58 of 75



 

North Little Rock School District 

Attn: Gene Hawk 

 Work to be performed at: North Little Rock 
Middle  School  6 . North Little Rock AR. 

 
Date: 1/6/17 

Project: 45,970 sq ft.  

We hereby propose to furnish all labor, materials, insurance and equipment necessary for the completion of 
the above referenced project. 
  
 Remove and dispose of existing roofing material down to deck. 
 
 Furnish and install 1 layer 3.7" ISO,  with 1/8 tapered insulation ( R 26 Total) 
                        and .060 mil TPO rhino bond attached with 20 yr.manufactures warranty. 
 
 Furnish and install new pipe supports as specified 
  
 Furnish and install new 24 ga pre finished Copings, fascia, counterflashings, gutters and 
 downspouts 
 
 
Total Price:      $ 630,352.00       Includes Bond, Taps and Building Permit 
  
Exclusions:  Decking,  Cost for deck replacement $ 10.00 per Sq. Ft. 
                     
 
 
 
 

                                                    Acceptance of Proposal: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature___Duane Logsdon___Date__11/06/2017__ 
AR Contractor’s License #: 0006570717 

 

Acceptance of this Proposal secures our pricing and 
acts as a Notice To Proceed pertaining to this project 
until a formal Contract or Purchase Order is issued . 

 
 
 
 
Signature_______________________Date________ 

 

5707 South 73rd Place ♦ Fort Smith, AR  72903 ♦ Phone 479.648.0037♦ Fax 479.648.9366 

Packet page 59 of 75



 

North Little Rock School District 

Attn: Gene Hawk 

 Work to be performed at: North Little Rock 
Middle  School  7-8 . North Little Rock AR. 

 
Date: 1/6/17 

Project: 47,413 sq ft.  

We hereby propose to furnish all labor, materials, insurance and equipment necessary for the completion of 
the above referenced project. 
  
 Remove and dispose of existing roofing material down to deck. 
 
 Furnish and install 1 layer 3.7" ISO,  with 1/8 tapered insulation ( R 26 Total) 
                        and .060 mil TPO rhino bond attached with 20 yr.manufactures warranty. 
 
 Furnish and install new pipe supports as specified 
  
 Furnish and install new 24 ga pre finished Copings, fascia, counterflashings, gutters and 
 downspouts 
 
 
Total Price:      $ 613,951.00       Includes Bond, Taps and Building Permit 
  
Exclusions:  Decking,  Cost for deck replacement $ 10.00 per Sq. Ft. 
                     
 
 
 
 

                                                    Acceptance of Proposal: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature___Duane Logsdon___Date__11/06/2017__ 
AR Contractor’s License #: 0006570717 

 

Acceptance of this Proposal secures our pricing and 
acts as a Notice To Proceed pertaining to this project 
until a formal Contract or Purchase Order is issued . 

 
 
 
 
Signature_______________________Date________ 

 

5707 South 73rd Place ♦ Fort Smith, AR  72903 ♦ Phone 479.648.0037♦ Fax 479.648.9366 

Packet page 60 of 75



 

North Little Rock School District 

Attn: Gene Hawk 

 Work to be performed at: North Little Rock 
Middle  School  Cafeteria . North Little Rock AR. 

 
Date: 1/6/17 

Project: 12,132 sq ft.  

We hereby propose to furnish all labor, materials, insurance and equipment necessary for the completion of 
the above referenced project. 
  
 Remove and dispose of existing roofing material down to deck. 
 
 Furnish and install 1 layer 3.7" ISO,  with 1/8 tapered insulation ( R 26 Total) 
                        and .060 mil TPO rhino bond attached with 20 yr.manufactures warranty. 
 
 Furnish and install new pipe supports as specified 
  
 Furnish and install new 24 ga pre finished Copings, fascia, counterflashings, gutters and 
 downspouts 
 
 
Total Price:      $ 277,910.00       Includes Bond, Taps and Building Permit 
  
Exclusions:  Decking,  Cost for deck replacement $ 10.00 per Sq. Ft. 
                     
 On the lower west roof the tapered insulation will extent above the windows 
 at the east side. This proposal does not include any modifications these windows. 
 
 

                                                    Acceptance of Proposal: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature___Duane Logsdon___Date__11/06/2017__ 
AR Contractor’s License #: 0006570717 

 

Acceptance of this Proposal secures our pricing and 
acts as a Notice To Proceed pertaining to this project 
until a formal Contract or Purchase Order is issued . 

 
 
 
 
Signature_______________________Date________ 

 

5707 South 73rd Place ♦ Fort Smith, AR  72903 ♦ Phone 479.648.0037♦ Fax 479.648.9366 

Packet page 61 of 75



 

North Little Rock School District 

Attn: Gene Hawk 

 Work to be performed at: North Little Rock 
Middle  School  Gym . North Little Rock AR. 

 
Date: 1/6/17 

Project: 21,164 sq ft.  

We hereby propose to furnish all labor, materials, insurance and equipment necessary for the completion of 
the above referenced project. 
  
 Remove and dispose of existing roofing material down to deck. 
 
 Furnish and install 1 layer 3.7" ISO,  with 1/8 tapered insulation ( R 26 Total) 
                        and .060 mil TPO rhino bond attached and fully adhered at Gym with 20 yr. 
 manufactures warranty. 
 
 Furnish and install new pipe supports as specified 
  
 Furnish and install new 24 ga pre finished Copings, fascia, counterflashings, gutters and 
 downspouts 
 
 
Total Price:      $ 345,350.00       Includes Bond, Taps and Building Permit 
  
Exclusions: Decking,  Cost for deck replacement $ 10.00 per Sq. Ft. 
                     
 
 
 

                                                    Acceptance of Proposal: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature___Duane Logsdon___Date__11/06/2017__ 
AR Contractor’s License #: 0006570717 

 

Acceptance of this Proposal secures our pricing and 
acts as a Notice To Proceed pertaining to this project 
until a formal Contract or Purchase Order is issued . 

 
 
 
 
Signature_______________________Date________ 

 

5707 South 73rd Place ♦ Fort Smith, AR  72903 ♦ Phone 479.648.0037♦ Fax 479.648.9366 

Packet page 62 of 75



 

 

 
 
January 9, 2017 
 
Mr. Gene Hawk 
Director of Facilities 
North Little Rock School District 
2700 Poplar Street 
North Little Rock, AR 72116 
 
Re:    NLRSD – Middle School Roof Systems Renovation - REVISED 
 
We are pleased to present this proposal for the referenced project for the prices listed below for each building separately: 
 

Gymnasium .............................................................................................................................................. $280,565.00 

Cafeteria Building ..................................................................................................................................... $168,044.00 

7th – 8th Grade Building............................................................................................................................. $556,580.00 

6th Grade Building..................................................................................................................................... $562,516.00 

 
Please note that some cost savings may be achieved if all buildings are completed at the same time. 
 
 
This price includes: 

1. Demolition consisting of: 

a. Remove and dispose of existing roof system down to existing deck. 

b. Inspect, document, and replace any damaged metal decking as per Allowance #1 

2. Thermoplastic Membrane Roofing (Carlisle or Mule-hide) consisting of: 

a. Install R-26 aged poliso rigid board insulation. 

b. Install 1/8” per ft. taper and crickets to direct water to drains. 

c. Install 1/4“ Densdeck Prime over insulation (mechanically fastened). 

d. Install a 60 mil TPO single-ply roof membrane (induction welded). 

e. Fully adhere TPO membrane to parapet walls. 

f. Install prefabricated TPO flashing around all penetrations as needed. 

g. Provide and install TPO scuppers as needed. 

h. Install new expansion joints per plans. 

i. Install coping metal to cover all precast. 

j. Provide and install rubber supports for all MEP pipes on roof. 

k. Install new wood blocking for condenser units. 

l. Hot air weld membrane seams with an automatic hot air welding machine. 

m. Provide 20-year NDL labor and material warranty. 

Packet page 63 of 75



 

 

Notes: 

An allowance of $25,000 for metal deck and miscellaneous structural reinforcement, precast cap repair, and skylight 
structural infill materials is included in the pricing. 

 
We have excluded the following: 

1. Hazardous materials testing or abatement 
2. Non-standard working hours.  (Work is priced during normal working hours) 
3. Unforeseen City or State Requirements 
4. Masonry 
5. Dampproofing, waterproofing, or fire stopping 
6. Mechanical, electrical or plumbing 
7. Flashing and sheet metal not listed above 

 

We thank you again for allowing Baldwin & Shell Construction Company to quote you on this project. Should you have 
any questions, please do not hesitate to call. 

   

Sincerely, 
BALDWIN & SHELL CONSTRUCTION CO. 

 
Chuck Garrett, CPE 
Senior Project Estimator 
Construction Services Team 
 

Packet page 64 of 75



Packet page 65 of 75



Packet page 66 of 75



Packet page 67 of 75



 

 

 
 
January 9, 2017 
 
Mr. Gene Hawk 
Director of Facilities 
North Little Rock School District 
2700 Poplar Street 
North Little Rock, AR 72116 
 
Re:    NLRSD – Academy School Re-roof - REVISED 
 
We are pleased to present this proposal for the reference project as limited below, for the base price of $687,273.00. 
 
This price includes: 

1. Demolition consisting of: 

a. Remove and dispose of existing roof system down to existing deck. 

b. Remove and replace blocking as required. 

c. Remove all coping, counter flashing & drip edge, replace with new 24ga Kynar color flashing. 

 

2. Thermoplastic Membrane Roofing consisting of: 

a. Fully adhere 60 Mil JM TPO roofing system complete in accordance with Johns Manville standard details 
and specifications. 

b. Mechanically attached roofing system where shown. 

c. Install new 1/8” taper systems with R-26 minimum utilizing existing drains. 

d. Insulation to be fastened where shown and adhered where shown. 

e. ¼” secure roc cover board over entire roof, fastened where shown and adhered where shown. 

f. Adhere parapet membrane up and over parapet walls. 

g. Flash all penetrations, drains, transitions & terminations per JM standard details. 

h. Provide Johns Manville 20 year No Dollar Limit (NDL) warranty to include material and labor. 

i. Roof to roof expansion joints cover and roof to wall expansion joint covers. 

Note: 

An allowance of $10,000.00 for misc. repairs to deck and lightweight has been included in the base price. 

 
We have excluded the following: 

1. Hazardous materials testing or abatement 
2. Non-standard working hours.  (Work is priced during normal working hours) 
3. Unforeseen City or State Requirements 
4. Masonry 
5. Damp proofing, waterproofing, fire stopping 
6. Mechanical, electrical or plumbing 
7. Flashing and sheet metal not listed above 

Packet page 68 of 75



 

 

 

We thank you again for allowing Baldwin & Shell Construction Company to quote you on this project. Should you have 
any questions, please do not hesitate to call. 

   

Sincerely, 
BALDWIN & SHELL CONSTRUCTION CO. 

 
Chuck Garrett, CPE 
Senior Project Estimator 
Construction Services Team 
 

Packet page 69 of 75



 

North Little Rock School District 

Attn: Gene Hawk 

 Work to be performed at: North Little Rock 
Academy School . North Little Rock AR. 

 
Date: 1/6/17 

Project: 46,821 sq ft.  

We hereby propose to furnish all labor, materials, insurance and equipment necessary for the completion of 
the above referenced project. 
  
 Remove and dispose of existing roofing material down to deck. 
 
 Furnish and install 1 layer 3.7" ISO,  with 1/8 tapered insulation ( R 26 Total) 
                        and .060 mil TPO rhino bond attached and fully adhered at Gym with 20 yr. 
 manufactures warranty. 
 
 Furnish and install new pipe supports as specified 
  
 Furnish and install new 24 ga pre finished Copings, fascia, counterflashings, gutters and 
 downspouts 
 
 
Total Price:      $ 589,459.00       Includes Bond, Taps and Building Permit 
  
Exclusions: Decking,  Cost for deck replacement $ 10.00 per Sq. Ft. 
                     
 
 
 

                                                    Acceptance of Proposal: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature___Duane Logsdon___Date__11/06/2017__ 
AR Contractor’s License #: 0006570717 

 

Acceptance of this Proposal secures our pricing and 
acts as a Notice To Proceed pertaining to this project 
until a formal Contract or Purchase Order is issued . 

 
 
 
 
Signature_______________________Date________ 

 

5707 South 73rd Place ♦ Fort Smith, AR  72903 ♦ Phone 479.648.0037♦ Fax 479.648.9366 

Packet page 70 of 75



 

 

January 10, 2016 
 

Mr. Gene Hawk 
Director of Facilities 
North Little Rock School 
2700 Poplar Street 

North Little Rock, AR 72114 
 

Re: Commissioning Proposal and Assessments                          
 North Little Rock Schools – NLR Administration Facility, NLR Middle School, Meadow Park 

Elementary and Ridgeroad Elementary 
 

Dear Gene: 

The purpose of this letter is to propose additional commissioning and Level I Energy Assessments as 
defined by the American Society of Heating, Refrigeration, and Air Conditioning (ASHRAE) for the NLR 
Administration Facility, NLR Middle School, Meadow Park Elementary School, and Ridgeroad 
Elementary School in North Little Rock, AR.  All services will be provided in accordance with the terms 
and conditions defined herein and the attached scope of work. I appreciate the opportunity to assist 
with this project. 

 

Based on a review of the district information, the facility sized are listed below: 
 

 NLR Administration Offices  16,712 sq. ft. 

 NLR Administration Annex  32,741 sq. ft. 

 NLR Middle School   260,269 sq. ft. 

 Meadow Park Elementary   67,282 sq. ft. 

 Ridgeroad Elementary School  80,967 sq. ft. 
 
The mechanical, electrical, and control systems in each facility vary depending on age, function, and 
occupancy.  In general, the mechanical systems include direct expansion heat pump units, gas heating 
units, roof top units, energy recovery outside air units, direct digital energy management controls, and 
exhaust fans.  The purpose of the Level I Assessment is to identify on a preliminary basis the potential 
for energy cost reduction in each facility and provide a high-level cost and economic analysis of the 
opportunities.  Where possible, commissioning activities will be provided to improve system 
performance.  These commissioning activities will include a pre-functional review of systems and 
functional performance testing.  If the project scope is modified or additional facilities are added, 
adjustments to the proposed fees may be required. 

 

 
 
 
 

Packet page 71 of 75



 

 

Commissioning Assessment Fees 
 

As the energy engineering firm on the project, all services will be coordinated and performed as defined in 
the attached scope of work. All activities will be conducted in a transparent manner and focused on 
providing value and advocacy for the Owner.  This proposal will be subject to the terms, conditions, and 
clarifications defined below. The functional testing services will be provided under a fixed fee 
arrangement. 

 

NLR Administration and Annex Buildings: $5,410.00 
NLR Middle School Buildings: $20,950.00 
Meadow Park Elementary School: $6,500.00 
Ridgeroad Elementary School: $7,500.00  
Total Fee: $40,360.00 

 

Terms, Conditions, Exclusions, and Clarifications 
 

1. Owner to provide full access to all work documents completed to date. 
2. Owner will provide appropriate access to the building. 
3. Owner will provide any available drawings, system information, utility information, and other 

information requested in a timely fashion. 
4. Owner will provide remote access to the building energy management system, if available. 
5. Owner will provide personnel to support the services defined herein. 
6. If Owner does not provide the information / access defined above and/or does not provide 

payment in a timely manner, the contract may be canceled at any time without penalty.  In the 
event of a cancellation, the Owner is still responsible for all payments and expenses incurred as part 
of this agreement. 

7. If re-testing is required due to equipment operation issues, equipment installation issues, or 
other construction related issues, additional fees will be required. 

8. The following are excluded from this proposal 
a) Pre-functional checklist development and verification of equipment installation. 
b) Functional testing services of existing equipment. 
c) Services typically required for Level I or Level II energy assessments. 
d) Travel to locations other than the North Little Rock, AR facilities. 
e) Plan reproduction or other project documentation costs. 

 

Invoicing and Payments 
 

All invoicing will be remitted on a monthly basis based on the percentage of project completion. 
Payments not received within 30 days may restrict the completion of remaining services covered under 
this agreement. 

 

Packet page 72 of 75



 

 

 

Proposal Agreement Acceptance 

By signing below, the parties indicate their agreement to the terms and conditions proposed 
herein. 

North Little Rock Schools Empirical Energy Solutions 
 

By:   By:    
 

Name:   Tim Staley 
 

Title:   Title:  President / Principal 
 

Date:   Date:    

Packet page 73 of 75



 

                    

 

                                            

 

 

 

Attachment A – Commissioning Assessment Scope of Work 

1. Interview operational staff to help identify operational concerns and project goals.   
2. Obtain all applicable building drawings for review.  Preference is for drawings to be in electronic 

format. 
3. Obtain copies of historical utility invoices for electricity, natural gas, water, and sewer.  Actual copies 

of utility invoices needed for at least the most recent 13 months.  Historical energy use and costs 
(does not have to be actual invoices) to be provided for the most recent 3-5 years. 

4. Obtain remote access to building energy management control system, if available. 
5. Obtain information regarding building departments, schedules, and occupancy.  Identify potential 

changes or adjustments to historical occupancy. 
6. Develop a list of project goals, priorities, operational concerns, budgeting, available funds, review 

process, and timing.  Publish information for owner review. 
7. Conduct a site walk through of the facility(ies) to become familiar with existing building systems, 

equipment, operations, and maintenance procedures.  Document results of site walk-through. 
8. Obtain a utility release letter for each applicable utility listed above. 
9. Obtain access to existing Energy Star Portfolio Manager account, if applicable. 
10. Develop or update the energy use index (EUI) for each contracted facility. The EUI is the measure of 

building energy use per unit area or the energy density for a building in terms of average energy use 
per square foot. Typical measurement is Btu/sf. 

11. Develop or update an energy cost index (ECI) for each contracted facility. The ECI is the measure of 
building energy cost per unit area or the energy cost density for a building in terms of average 
energy cost per square foot. measurement is $/sf. 

12. Develop or update benchmark data to provide a comparison of current facility EUI and compare to 
other similar type facilities using the Energy Star Portfolio Manager, CBECS database, and other 
applicable databases.  

13. Identify current utility rate schedules for electricity, natural gas, water, sewer, and other potential 
utilities.  

14. Identify all available utility rebates, applications, and incentives.  Focus on “direct install” measures 
or other methods of “free” funding that fully fund energy efficiency measures. 

15. Document process and procedures for accessing available utility rebates and incentives. 
16. Identify potential energy cost reduction and improvement opportunities for each facility. 
17. Document, on a preliminary basis, the estimated cost for recommended energy efficiency measures. 
18. Complete a preliminary economic analysis for the proposed energy efficiency program at each 

facility. 
19. Document findings to owner personnel and make recommendations for system adjustments and 

modifications. 
20. Document findings and recommendations in a final written report. 

Functional Testing Services Scope of Work 

1. Develop a testing plan for all applicable equipment. 
2. Perform HVAC design review of the construction drawings and specifications. 
3. Review submittals for HVAC equipment. 

Packet page 74 of 75



 

                    

 

                                            

 

 

 

4. Develop and write the functional test procedures. 
5. Complete functional performance testing of selected HVAC equipment. 
6. Review air systems balancing and report any issues. 
7. Maintain an issues log. Provide to the general contractor and owner written 

progress reports and test results with recommended actions. 
8. Meet with Owner / General Contractor to discuss findings and recommendations. 
9. Any verification of installation and/or re-testing due to equipment installation or 

operational issues will be provided at additional fees. 

 

 

 

 

Packet page 75 of 75


	Cover Page (p. 1)
	Agenda (p. 2)
	Regular Board Meeting Minutes - December 15 2016.pdf (p. 5)
	Special Board Meeting Meeting Minutes - January 5 2017.pdf (p. 10)
	Financial Statements - January 2017.pdf (p. 12)
	Employment of Personnel - Jan 2017.pdf (p. 30)
	Business Office Items - January 2017 Revised.docx (p. 33)
	Facilities Use Agreement Little Rock Wind Symphony - Jan 2017.pdf (p. 36)
	Facilities Use Agreement Karen's Dance Recital - Jan 2017.pdf (p. 39)
	Fringe Benefits Savings Option - Jan 10 2017.pdf (p. 42)
	CPPC Meeting - Jan 10 2017.docx (p. 45)
	CPPC Meeting - Jan 4 2017.docx (p. 47)
	North Little Rock Center of Excellence Tiered Recognition Program - January 2017.pdf (p. 48)
	6.3 Public Gifts and Donations to the Schools 6.6 Fundraising and 7.8.1 Donated Property - January 2017.pdf (p. 51)
	MOU Techstart - Jan 2017.pdf (p. 54)
	MS Seamless Systems Roof Proposal.pdf (p. 59)
	NLRSD Middle Roof Proposal - Revised -.pdf (p. 63)
	Disposal of Outdated Nonworking Technology Equipment-Jan 2017.pdf (p. 65)
	Academy School Re-roof Proposal - Revised.pdf (p. 68)
	NLR Academy Seamless Systems Roof Proposal.pdf (p. 70)
	Level I Energy Assessment proposal 011017-1.pdf (p. 71)

